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“If we are to preserve a significant sampling of 
our past and the infinitely hard work which built 
it, piece by piece, we are going to need resources 
which will guide us and develop standards of 
judgement which can be applied to preservation, 
whether through public concern and persuasion or 
through legal instruments. Documentary evidence of 
our architecture that is worth saving is a part of 
the process.”

-Robert C. Gaede, A.I.A.
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THIS BOOK IS DEDICATED TO FURTHERING AWARENESS, 

APPRECIATION, AND PRESERVATION OF THE RICH ARCHITECTURAL 

HERITAGE OF THE WESTERN RESERVE





A NOTE FROM MOULDINGS ONE 

The Historic American Buildings Survey (HABS) has been called the 
“gold standard” of architectural documentation. First initiated 
as a work program for unemployed architects and draftsmen during 
the Great Depression, HABS has become an invaluable resource for 
preservationists and designers alike. HABS continues to employ 
young architectural students and practitioners in the documentation 
of our country’s historic structures. 

The HABS drawings and photographs presented in this book document 
historic architecture in the Western Reserve, much of it in the 
Greek Revival style. By drawing attention to these examples and 
making them available to a wider audience of builders, craftsmen and 
enthusiasts, we hope to increase public awareness, appreciation, 
and preservation of our Western Reserve’s ever-disappearing 
architectural legacy.

-Stephen Trudic, Jr.



 pg# name of structure year town county
 
 n/s A.M. Willard Home 1820 Aurora Portage
 1-4 Arnold House 1830 Copley Summit
 5-12 Baldauf House 1861 Avon Lorain
 13-18 Birthplace of Thomas Edison 1841 Milan Erie
 n/s Baldwin-Buss House 1825 Hudson Summit
 n/s Beiter House 1837 Zoar Tuscarawas
 19-23 Blackman House 1850 Solon Cuyahoga
 n/s Blacksmith Shop 1858 Zoar Tuscarawas
 n/s Bliss House 1830 Hudson Summit
 24-28 Brecksville Inn 1839 Brecksville Cuyahoga
 n/s Brewery 1830 Zoar Tuscarawas
 n/s C.R. Howard House 1853 Aurora Portage
 n/s Chapel-Western Reserve Acadamy 1836   Hudson Summit
	 29-38	 Chester	Moffet	House	 1826	 Claridon	 Geauga
 n/s Cider Mill 1830 Tuscarawas Zoar    
 39-45 Clark-Pratt-Kemery Residence 1814 Lorain Huntington       
    n/s  Cobbler Shop 1830 Zoar Tuscarawas 
 n/s Colonel Simon Perkins House 1836 Akron Summit
 52-63 Columbian House 1828 Waterville Lucas
 n/s Congregational Church 1841 Atwater Portage
 n/s Congregational Church 1843 Bristolville Trumbull
 64-71 Congregational Church 1829 Claridon Geauga   
 n/s Congregational Church 1825 Talmadge Summit
 n/s Congregational Church 1833 Kinsman Trumbull
 72-81 Corydon Taylor House 1826 Claridon Geauga   
 n/s Covered Bridge-Darby Creek 1859 N.Lewisburg Champaign
 n/s Covered Bridge-Newton Falls 1808 Newton Falls Trumbull
 n/s Covered Bridge-Spains Creek 1859 N.Lewisburh Champaign
 n/s Cow Barn 1850 Zoar Tuscarawas 
 82-90 Crawford House 1837 Chagrin Falls Cuyahoga
 90-96 Curtis-Devin House 1834 Knox Mt.Vernon 
 97-106 Dirlam-Allen House 1852 Huntington Lorain
	 n/s	 Doorway-Shivley	House	 1830	 Deerfield	 Portage	
 n/s Dormitory 1858 Zoar Tuscarawas 
 n/s Episcopal Church 1853 Zoar  Tuscarawas 
 107-120 Fay Homestead 1850 Parma Hts Cuyahoga
 n/s First Congregational Church 1835 Weymouth Medina
 n/s  First Meeting House 1817 Zoar Tuscarawas 
 121-130 Fosdick House 1816 Cleveland Cuyahoga 
	131-133	 French	House	 1850	 Northfield	 Summit
 134-136 Front Entrance-Baldwin House 1834 Limaville Stark
 n/s Gardener’s Cottage 1835 Zoar Tuscarawas
 n/s Grist Mill 1830 Zoar Tuscarawas 
 137-144 H.V. Bronson House 1845 Peninsula Summit   
145-150  Hardwick House 1833 Avon Lorain 
 n/s Hermitage 1817 Zoar Tuscarawas 
 151-155 Herrick House 1845 Twinsburg Summit
 156-158 Hopkins House Entrance 1830 Bath Summit 

*n/s - not shown



 pg# name of structure year town county

159-162  Hopwood House 1831 Aurora Portage 
 n/s House-First & Main Streets 1830 Zoar Tuscarawas
 163-171 Iddings-Webb House 1807 Warren Trumbull 
 172-179 Johnathan Hale House 1826 Ira Summit  
	180-187	 Joshua	R.Giddings	Law	Office	 1823	 Jefferson	 Ashtabula	
 n/s  Kappel House 1827 Zoar Tuscarawas
 n/s Keucherer House 1856 Zoar Tuscarawas 
 n/s King’s Palace 1835 Zoar Tuscarawas  
 188-201 Kinsman House 1833 Warren Trumbull
	202-203	 Kinsman	Office	 1832	 Warren	 Trumbull	 	 	
204-207  Lew Lawyer Residence 1825 Burton  Geauga
 208-212 Lewis House 1846 Avon Lorain
 n/s Lockwood House 1810 Painsville  Lake
 n/s Log Cabin-Schlather 1819 Zoar Tuscarawas 
 n/s Malin House 1810 Painsville Lake
 213-216 H.W.March House 1849 Chargrin Falls Cuyahoga
 107-114 Martin House 1831 Norwalk Huron
217-231  Mathews House 1821 Painsville Lake
 232-242 Matt Gray House 1833 N.Lewisburg Champaign
 242-245 Meriman Cook House 1806 Burton  Geauga 
 246-259 Moore-Brewster House 1834 Wooster Wayne 
 n/s North Hall-Western Reserve Acd. 1837 Hudson Summit 
 n/s N.Olmsted Universalist Church 1843 N.Olmstead Cuyahoga
 n/s Observatory-Western Res. Acd. 1837 Hudson Summit
 n/s Old Baptist Church 1851 Streetsboro Portage
 260-275 Peter Allen House 1821 Kinsman Trumbull
 276-288 Presidents House 1830 Hudson Summit 
 289-293 Robinson-Fitch House 1855 Avon Lorain
 294-302 Root House 1810 Aurora Portage
 n/s Saddler Shop 1830 Zoar Tuscarawas
 303-311 Sandusky County Court House 1844 Fremont Sandusky
 312-321 Seth Marshall Residence 1800 Painsville Lake
 n/s Sewing House 1830 Zoar Tuscarawas
 46-51 Simon Perkins House 1836 Akron Summit
 322-328 Sweet House 1840 Avon Lorain
 329-333 Sykes House 1825 Chagrin Falls Cuyahoga
	334-335	 Talcott	House	 1820	 Jefferson	 Ashtabula
 336-348 Thomas Hurst Residence 1826 Dover Cuyahoga
 n/s Treat House 1820 Aurora Portage
 n/s Unionville Tavern 1812 Unionville  Lake
 349-359 W.& L.E. Hurst House 1843 Avon Lorain
 n/s Warren-Hollis House 1837 Chagrin Falls Cuyahoga
 n/s White House - North Bristol 1856 Avon Lorain
 360-364 Wilson-Riegelberger House 1856 Avon Lorain 
 n/s Zeeb House 1817 Zoar Tuscarawas
 n/s Zoar Hotel 1835 Zoar  Tuscarawas
 n/s Zoar Jail
 

*n/s - not shown



ABOUT THE HISTORIC AMERICAN 
BUILDING SURVEY (HABS)

The Historic American Buildings Survey (HABS) and the Historic 
American Engineering Record (HAER) collections are among the largest 
and most heavily used in the Prints and Photographs Division of the 
Library of Congress. Since 2000, documentation from the Historic 
American Landscapes Survey (HALS) has been added to the holdings. 
The collections document achievements in architecture, engineering, 
and landscape design in the United States and its territories through 
a comprehensive range of building types, engineering technologies, 
and landscapes, including examples as diverse as the Pueblo of 
Acoma, houses, windmills, one-room schools, the Golden Gate Bridge, 
and buildings designed by Frank Lloyd Wright. Administered since 
1933 through cooperative agreements with the National Park Service, 
the Library of Congress, and the private sector, ongoing programs of 
the National Park Service have recorded America’s built environment 
in multiformat surveys comprising more than 556,900 measured 
drawings, large-format photographs, and written histories for more 
than 38,600 historic structures and sites dating from Pre-Columbian 
times to the twentieth century. This online presentation of the 
HABS/HAER/HALS collections includes digitized images of measured 
drawings, black-and-white photographs, color transparencies, photo 
captions, written history pages, and supplemental materials. Since 
the National Park Service’s HABS, HAER and HALS programs create new 
documentation each year, documentation will continue to be added 
to	the	online	collections.	The	first	phase	of	digitization	of	the	
Historic American Engineering Record collection was made possible 
by the generous support of the Shell Oil Company Foundation.

ABOUT THE HABS DRAWINGS IN THIS BOOK

The following drawings were selected from a list available from 
the Western Reserve Historical Society Research Library. While all 
of	the	buildings	included	in	HABS	are	of	historical	significance,	
space constraints have resulted in the selections presented here. 
Interested parties should feel free to contact the research library 
for the full list of all HABS documents found in the Western Reserve.



HABS ONLINE

Search over 500,000 drawings from their collection online:

    http://www.loc.gov/pictures/collection/hh/

http://www.loc.gov/pictures/collection/hh/


MOULDINGS ONE CAN RECREATE 
ARCHITECTURAL MILLWORK FROM DRAWINGS 

Mouldings One has transcribed all of the drawings shown in this book 
into scaled AutoCAD renderings as shown on the following pages. Our 
workshop	can	create	any	of	the	profiles	in	most	hardwood	species	for	
your use. In addition, we have hundreds of historic mouldings in 
our collection. Visit us online @ mouldingsone.com for a complete 
listing.

http://mouldingsone.com
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Kelly Falcone, Hale Farm & Village | 1958-2013 (Bath, Ohio: Western Reserve Historical Society, 2013), 2-3.
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HISTORICAL INTRODUCTION OF THE WESTERN RESERVE

“The Western Reserve was a vast tract of land that extended 120 miles west from the 
Pennsylvania boundary between the 41st parallel and the southern Lake Erie shore. 
Connecticut’s claim to this land was based on a charter granted to the colony by King 
Charles II, of England in 1662. The charter encompassed a swath of land stretching 
from	the	Atlantic	to	the	Pacific	Ocean.

After the American Revolution, most of the former colonies ceded claims to lands west 
of the Appalachians to the new national government. However, Connecticut retained a 
portion of its lands because of legal issues relating to overlapping land claims with 
New York and Pennsylvania. By successfully pursuing its claim, Connecticut reserved a 
potentially valuable 120 mile strip of land south of Lake Erie for just for itself. ThIS 
land was referred to by many names, including “New Connecticut,” and “The Connecticut 
Reserve.” In Ohio, the land was referred to simply as the Western Reserve.

In 1786, the Connecticut General Assembly directed the lands to be surveyed and sold. 
A committee was appointed to sell the entire Reserve, with proceeds to be placed in a 
special fund to supports schools in Connecticut. However, the land could only be sold 
when the Native American claims to it had been resolved. That would occur in 1795, 
under the Treaty of Greenville when Native Americans ceded their claims to lands east 
of the Cuyahoga River. Ten years later, they gave up claims to the remaining portion 
of the Reserve.

The Connecticut Land Company, a consortium of 35 purchasing groups representing 58 
individuals purchased the largest portion of the Western Reserve for $1,200,000. In 
1796 and 1797, a band of surveyors employed by the company laid out a pattern of east-
west	(ranges)	and	north-south	(townships)	lines	that	crisscrossed	the	land	at	five-mile	
intervals from the Pennsylvania line to the Cuyahoga River. The land company’s sole 
intent was to sell the land to individuals for settlement and speculvdation. With land 
available at $1.00 to 2.50 per acre, even a poor man with a small down payment and 
little credit could purchase a subsistence farm in the Western Reserve.””  



ARCHITECTURE OF THE WESTERN RESERVE,(1800-1860)

The Connecticut Western Reserve was opened to settlement following the signing of 
treaties with the Native Americans in the late 18th century. After the War of 1812, 
the initial settlers were joined in the wilderness by Revolutionary War Veterans and 
others moving from crowded Connecticut, New England and Upstate New York. By 1820, many 
of the towns, villages and cities we know today had been founded. At this time, the 
architecture was still fairly primitive and included predominantly earthen and stone 
shelters and small log cabins. As farming, hard work and trade increased prosperity, 
architecture of the Wesetrn Reserve increased in sophistication, evolving from the 
simpler forms of the Georgian and Federal styles into the Greek Revival and Gothic 
Revival styles prevalent prior to the mid-19th century and the Civil War.

Today, the surviving examples of these early buildings of the Western Reserve are 
scattered on the landscape, sited as they were originally along ridges, on hilltops 
and in the valleys of the area. In cities like Cleveland, later development has 
almost completely erased any sign of the earliest buildings. In the countryside, 
often preserved by necessity or neglect, remnants of our early architectural history 
remain, sometimes hidden by overgrown vegetation or layers of aluminum siding. These 
early houses and other buildings stand as a testament to the early settlers and the 
wilderness they tamed. Their presence and our reverence for them is a clear expression 
of our commitment to our architectural heritage and to the history of the Western 
Reserve.
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Hatcher, Harlan. The Western Reserve; the Story of New 
Connecticut in Ohio. Kent: Kent State University Press 
in cooperation with the Western Reserve Historical 
Society, c1991.

Hitchcock, Elizabeth G., and Jonathan Goldsmith. 
Jonathan Goldsmith: Pioneer Master Builder of the 
Western Reserve. Cleveland: Western Reserve Historical 
Soc., 1980. Print.

Horton, John J. The Jonathan Hale Farm; a Chronicle 
of the Cuyahoga Valley. Cleveland: Western Reserve 
Historical Society, 1961. Print.

“Source:Rose, William Ganson. Cleveland : The Making 
of a City.” - Genealogy. N.p., n.d. Web. 30 Apr. 2014.

HISTORIC PLACES TO VISIT

Hale Farm and Village, Bath   www.wrhs.org

Western Reserve Historical Society Research Library   
wwww.wrhs.org

Dunham Tavern, Cleveland  www.dunhamtavern.org

Gates Mills   www.gatesmillsvillage.com

Century Village Museum, Burton
www.centuryvillagemuseum.org

Zoar Village, Zoar   www.historiczoarvillage.com

Historic Schoenbrunn Village, New Philadelphia               
www.ohiosfirstvillage.org

Chesterland Historical Society, Chesterland     
www.chesterlandhistoricalvillage.org

Garfield	Birthplace	,	Moreland	Hills												
www.presidentsusa.net/arfieldbirthplace

Fort  Laurens , Bolivar   www.fortlaurens.org

Carrollton County Historical Society and McCook 
House, Carrollton                              
www.carrollcountyohio.com/history/mccookhouse 

Kirtland Temple, Kirtland   www.kirtlandtemple.org
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P.O. BOX 15 OR 13813 STATION ROAD; BURTON, OHIO 44021

MONDAY-FRIDAY 8AM - 4:30PM, SATURDAY 8AM - 12PM

PH 440.834.3420 OR 877.708.4095  F 440.834.3422

mouldingsone.com

Heritage Documentation Programs is a division of 

the U.S. National Park Service (NPS) responsible for 

administering the Historic American Buildings Survey 

(HABS), Historic American Engineering Record (HAER), 

and Historic American Landscapes Survey (HALS). 

These programs were established for the purpose of 

documenting historic places in the United States. 

Records consist of measured drawings, archival 

photographs, and written reports, and are archived in 

the Prints and Photographs Division of the Library of 

Congress.
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